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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  Good morning.  My

          3  name is Diana Reyna, and I am Chair of the Committee

          4  on Rules, Privileges and Elections.  Before we

          5  begin, I would like to introduce the other Members

          6  of this Committee who are present here today.  To my

          7  left, Council Member Rosie Mendez, Council Member

          8  Daniel Garodnick, I said your whole name, Council

          9  Member Robert Jackson, Council Member Vinny Gentile,

         10  Council Member Melinda Katz.  To my right, Council

         11  Member Lewis Fidler, Council Member Jimmy Oddo,

         12  Council Member Jessica Lappin.  We've also been

         13  joined by Council Member Joel Rivera.

         14                 Today we have before us three

         15  candidates for our review:

         16                 Dr. Thomas Tsang, a resident of

         17  Manhattan, Mayoral appointment to the Board of

         18  Health.  If appointed, Dr. Tsang will succeed Dr.

         19  Beatrix Hamburg and serve for the remainder of a

         20  six-year term that expires on May 31, 2012;

         21                 Roberta Washington, a resident of

         22  Manhattan and registered architect, Mayoral

         23  appointment to the Landmarks Preservation

         24  Commission.  If appointed, Ms. Washington will

         25  succeed Richard Olcott and serve for the remainder
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          2  of a six-year term that expires on June 28, 2009;

          3                 Lastly but not least, Robert Tierney,

          4  a resident of Manhattan, Mayoral reappointment as

          5  Chair of the Landmarks Preservation Commission.  If

          6  reappointed, Mr. Tierney will serve another three-

          7  year term that expires on June 28, 2010.

          8                 We will begin with Dr. Tsang, the

          9  candidate for the Board of Health.  Welcome Dr.

         10  Tsang.

         11                 DR. TSANG:  Thank you.

         12                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  And do you

         13  swear or affirm to tell the truth, the whole truth

         14  and nothing but the truth?

         15                 DR. TSANG:  I do.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  And if you may

         17  give me an opportunity to just read into the record

         18  the function.

         19                 The Board is part of the New York

         20  City Department of Health and Mental Hygiene.  The

         21  Board's chairperson is the Commissioner of the

         22  Department.  The main function of the Board is to

         23  promulgate the New York City Health Code, which

         24  encompasses any matter within the jurisdiction of

         25  the Department.
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          2                 The Department has jurisdiction to

          3  regulate on all matters affecting health in the

          4  City, including but not limited to mental health,

          5  mental retardation, alcoholism and substance abuse-

          6  related needs of City residents.

          7                 The scope of the Department's

          8  jurisdiction includes such diverse disciplines as

          9  communicable diseases, environmental health

         10  services, radiological health, food safety,

         11  veterinary affairs, water quality, pest control and

         12  vital statistics.  New emerging pathogens and

         13  biological warfare are the most recent additions to

         14  the Department's roster of concerns.

         15                 The Board also is charged with

         16  certain administrative responsibilities such as the

         17  issuance, suspension or revocation of permits.  For

         18  example, food vendor permits.  The Board may declare

         19  a state of great and imminent peril and take

         20  appropriate steps subject to Mayoral approval and

         21  can declare certain conditions as nuisance and order

         22  that such conditions be abated or otherwise

         23  corrected.

         24                 Besides the chairperson, the Board

         25  consists of ten members, five of whom shall be
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          2  doctors of medicine, who must have at least ten

          3  years experience in any or all of the following:

          4  Clinical medicine, neurology, psychiatry, public

          5  health administration or college university public

          6  health teaching.  The other five members need not be

          7  physicians, but shall hold at least a masters degree

          8  in either environmental, biological, veterinary,

          9  physical or behavioral health or science or

         10  rehabilitative science or in a related field with at

         11  least ten years experience in their respective

         12  fields.

         13                 The chairperson of the Mental Hygiene

         14  Advisory Board is required to be one of the ten

         15  board members, provided that such individual meets

         16  the requirements for the board membership.  The nine

         17  board members other than the chairperson and the

         18  member who shall be the chairperson of the Mental

         19  Hygiene Advisory Board serve without compensation

         20  and are appointed by the Mayor for a term of six

         21  years.

         22                 Welcome Dr. Tsang.  If you have an

         23  opening statement, now is the time to do so.

         24                 DR. TSANG:  I'd like to first thank

         25  the Members of the Rules Committee for allowing me
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          2  to appear before them.  I'm quite honored to have

          3  the opportunity to present myself.  I've been a

          4  resident of New York City for most of my adult life.

          5    I've been living in New York City for about 35

          6  years.  I've been practicing medicine for about 12

          7  years as an internist first and foremost.  I've been

          8  practicing at New York Downtown Hospital for the

          9  first seven years.  Then, for the last five years

         10  I've been the Chief Medical Officer for Charles B.

         11  Wang Community Health Center, which is just about

         12  five blocks from here.

         13                 Councilman Rivera had actually came

         14  and visited us and looked at our processes and the

         15  way we handle patients.  We see about 40,000

         16  patients and I have about 150,000 visits a year. My

         17  interests include preventive medicine, diabetes,

         18  Hepatitis B and we've collaborated with the

         19  Department of Health doing a lot of public health

         20  programs over the last five years.  We're also doing

         21  a lot of mass screenings and trying to control

         22  obesity, hypertension and strokes.  So, if you have

         23  any questions, please feel free to ask me any

         24  questions.  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  Thank you Dr.
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          2  Tsang.  Is there anyone in the Committee who has any

          3  questions for Dr. Tsang? Council Member Mendez.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  I actually

          5  don't have any questions.  I just wanted to state

          6  that Dr. Tsang is a resident of my district.  I'm

          7  familiar with the organizations he's been affiliated

          8  with, the Wang Center and his work with the Callen

          9  Lourde Center, great organizations, health care

         10  preventative organizations that have done a lot for

         11  our communities.  I am proud that he is a resident

         12  of my district.  Thank you.

         13                 DR. TSANG:  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  Thank you Council

         15  Member Mendez.  We want to move forward to the next

         16  appointee.  The New York City Landmarks Preservation

         17  Commission, which consists of 11 members, is

         18  responsible for establishing and regulating

         19  landmarks, portions of landmarks, landmark sites,

         20  interior landmarks, scenic landmarks and historic

         21  districts and also regulates alterations to the

         22  designated buildings.

         23                 The Charter requires that the

         24  Commission's membership include at least three

         25  architects, one historian qualified in the field,
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          2  one City planner or landscape architect and one

          3  realtor.  No professional qualifications for the

          4  remaining members are delineated in the Charter.

          5                 By statute, the Commission's

          6  membership must have at least one resident from each

          7  of the five boroughs.  The Mayor appoints members of

          8  the Commission for staggered three- year terms.

          9  Each member continues to serve as a Commissioner

         10  until his or her successor is appointed and

         11  qualified.

         12                 The Mayor designates one of the

         13  members to serve as chair of the Commission and

         14  another to serve as vice- chair. Both of these

         15  appointees serve until a successor is designated.

         16  Members other than the chair serve without

         17  compensation, but are reimbursed for expenses

         18  necessarily incurred in the performance of their

         19  duties.  The chair's salary is currently

         20  $177,698.00. The Commission appoints a full- time

         21  executive director and may employ technical experts

         22  and such other employees as may be required to

         23  perform its duties.

         24                 The Commission is required to provide

         25  opportunities for comment in advance of any hearing
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          2  on a proposed designation.  In addition, the

          3  Commission may, at any time, make recommendations to

          4  the City Planning Commission regarding amendments to

          5  the zoning resolution, provisions that apply to

          6  improvements in a historic district.

          7                 The Commission's duties also include

          8  determining whether a proposed alteration or

          9  demolition affecting a landmark is consistent with

         10  the landmark's law.  In instances where the

         11  Commission determines that the proposed change

         12  complies with the law is granted a certificate of

         13  appropriateness and otherwise the Commission may

         14  deny the applicant's request.

         15                 Welcome Ms. Washington.  Will you

         16  please raise your right hand and be sworn in.

         17                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Will you swear

         18  or affirm to tell the truth, the whole truth and

         19  nothing but the truth?

         20                 MS. WASHINGTON:  Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  Ms. Washington,

         22  if you have an opening statement, you may read it

         23  now.  I'm sorry, Ms. Washington, turn on  --  when

         24  the light is off.  Fantastic.

         25                 MS. WASHINGTON:  Okay.  I'm honored
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          2  to appear before you today as a candidate for

          3  commissioner at the Landmarks Preservation

          4  Commission.  As a person whose awed by the

          5  fascinating and remarkable histories of places in

          6  New York City, I believe strongly in the

          7  preservation of historic buildings and places as a

          8  way to tell the City's stories.

          9                 As a graduate of Howard University

         10  School of Architecture, I first came to New York to

         11  pursue a degree in architecture at Columbia

         12  University in their Hospital and Health Facilities

         13  Design program.  After working for several local

         14  architectural firms and getting licensed, I

         15  relocated to the Southern African Country of

         16  Mozambique, where I worked as an architect for four

         17  years.

         18                 I returned to New York and started my

         19  own architectural firm in 1983.  My firm's first

         20  project was the Hotel Cecil on 118th Street, which

         21  is on the national registry of historic buildings.

         22  As the architect for this building, known as the

         23  location of the famed Minton's Playhouse, a jazz

         24  club in the 1940's, we restored a derelict apartment

         25  hotel to provide 90 single- room occupancy
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          2  residences, while preserving the jazz club's space.

          3                 As associate architects, we were

          4  responsible for the design of the restoration of a

          5  1940's jazz club in Kansas City as part of a museum

          6  honoring the Negro baseball leagues and jazz in

          7  Kansas City.

          8                 The majority of our projects have

          9  involved the restoration or rehabilitation of

         10  existing buildings.  Among these projects was the

         11  restoration of the Heckscher Theater, located on

         12  Fifth Avenue and 104th Street.  There, we worked

         13  with theater consultants to successfully update a

         14  1920's theater, which serves East Harlem.

         15                 We were the architects for the

         16  restoration of 20 porches on a block of West 130th

         17  Street in Harlem known as Astor Row.  A project at

         18  the New York Landmarks Conservancy, these 1980's

         19  porches are unique to most of New York and tell part

         20  of the story of working class housing in that era.

         21                 We were the designers of 27 in- field

         22  houses on small vacant lots in what was then a

         23  proposed historic district in Central Harlem.

         24  There, we strived to build anew while reflecting the

         25  surrounding neighborhood scale, historic fabric and
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          2  character.

          3                 More recently, we were the architects

          4  for a new $25 million green school project in New

          5  Haven, Connecticut, which included the restoration

          6  of a 1913 school building.  Although the addition is

          7  much larger than the existing building, we believe

          8  that the new design pays homage to the character of

          9  the existing structure, while incorporating

         10  contemporary materials and technology.

         11                 For the last 20 years, I have lived

         12  and maintained my office in Harlem.  In 1991, I was

         13  appointed to the community, to Community Board Ten

         14  in Central Harlem, where I served as a member for

         15  eight years, with five of those years spent as

         16  Housing Chair and Co- Chair of the Land Use

         17  Commission.

         18                 Participation on my local community

         19  board helped informed my understanding and insights

         20  in the importance of landmark preservation issues to

         21  community residents.  I am a past president of the

         22  National Organization of Minority Architects. I'm

         23  also a past chairperson of the New York State Board

         24  of Architecture and continue to serve as an extended

         25  member.
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          2                 I was recently elevated to the

          3  College of Fellows of the American Institute of

          4  Architects and I'm currently on the board of the

          5  Architecture Foundation at the New York Chapter of

          6  the AIA.

          7                 I want to serve on the Landmarks

          8  Preservation Committee because I believe that the

          9  work of designating and regulating changes to

         10  landmarked buildings and places is integral to the

         11  understanding of the City we live in by present and

         12  future generations.  I believe that my own history

         13  and background have prepared me to judge the

         14  technical, while understanding the social and

         15  cultural aspects of landmarks preservation in New

         16  York City.  I welcome this opportunity to serve.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  Thank you Ms.

         18  Washington.  I want to ask our next appointee, Mr.

         19  Tierney, if you can please raise your right hand and

         20  be sworn in.

         21                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Do you swear

         22  or affirm to tell the truth, the whole truth and

         23  nothing but the truth?

         24                 MR. TIERNEY:  I do.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  We will hold
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          2  questions and comments until afterwards, since this

          3  is both, two appointments to the Landmarks

          4  Committee.  If you have a statement, please.

          5                 MR. TIERNEY:  I will.  Thank you very

          6  much.  Good morning Chair Reyna, honorable Council

          7  Members.  Is this working? I am Bob Tierney,

          8  Chairman of the New York City Landmarks Preservation

          9  Commission.  I thank you for the opportunity to

         10  testify before your Committee this morning.

         11                 The Landmarks Preservation Commission

         12  is the City agency responsible for identifying and

         13  protecting the City's historical, aesthetic and

         14  cultural heritage.  The Commission carries out its

         15  mission by designating individual landmarks,

         16  interior landmarks, scenic landmarks, historic

         17  districts and regulating proposed work on designated

         18  buildings.

         19                 To date, as we speak, the Commission

         20  has designated 1,161 individual landmarks, 88

         21  historic districts, with 11 extensions, with a total

         22  of over 24,000 buildings. During this fiscal year

         23  alone, we have also received more than 9,200 permit

         24  applications on the regulatory side of the agency

         25  and have taken more than 9,300 actions flowing from
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          2  those applications.

          3                 As you know, my primary goal as

          4  Chairman of the Commission has been to designate

          5  more buildings outside of Manhattan than had

          6  previously been the case.  I said this at the

          7  beginning.  This is actually the third time I've

          8  been before this Committee for confirmation.  I

          9  think, consistently, that's been one of my

         10  objectives.  And, I'm proud to say this morning that

         11  we've been enormously successful in that regard.

         12                 In the past four years, the

         13  Commission has designated more than four times as

         14  many buildings in Brooklyn, Queens, Staten Island

         15  and the Bronx than it has in Manhattan. Nothing

         16  against Manhattan, I want to be clear about that.

         17  But, it's, those are the facts.

         18                 This includes, over that four year

         19  period, 38 individual landmarks and the designations

         20  of the Fieldston Historic District in the Bronx; the

         21  St. Paul's Avenue Stapleton Heights District, Mudd

         22  Land and Staten Island; the Crown Heights North

         23  Historic District in Brooklyn; the Douglaston Hill

         24  District in Queens; and just yesterday, very

         25  proudly, the Sunnyside Gardens Historic District,
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          2  624 residences, houses, structures within that,

          3  within that historic district.  So, with over 600

          4  buildings, Sunnyside Gardens is now the largest

          5  historic district ever designated in Queens.

          6                 Thanks to the support of the Mayor

          7  and the City Council, the Commission has been able

          8  to increase its staff by more than 35 percent over

          9  the four years that I've just alluded to.  As a

         10  result, we have also been able to increase our

         11  number of designations.  It actually, it follows and

         12  it's, it's gratifying.

         13                 During the current fiscal year that

         14  ends four days from now, three days from now, June

         15  30, the Commission will have designated over 1,100

         16  buildings, which is the greatest number of

         17  designations, the largest number of designations in

         18  over 17 years, going back to 1990.

         19                 So, in conclusion, it's been a great

         20  honor and privilege for me to have served as the

         21  Chairman of the Landmarks Commission.  The mission

         22  of this agency, I believe, goes to the heart of what

         23  makes this City what it is today, a unique place

         24  with a rich, cultural aesthetic and historic

         25  heritage that all of us see every day in our built
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          2  environment.  To be even the temporary trustee,

          3  which I am honored to be, of that heritage and to

          4  lead a committed and dedicated agency that's charged

          5  with its preservation is both an honor and a

          6  continuing challenge and one that I am very proud to

          7  have undertaken.  I thank you all very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  Thank you Mr.

          9  Chair.  Well, you're still Chair, so.  I want to

         10  just acknowledge, Erik Martin Dilan, Council Member,

         11  Chair of the Housing and Buildings Committee as part

         12  of this Committee.  But, he's handling the Housing

         13  and Buildings Committee that is passing the

         14  historical buildings code today.  We've been joined

         15  by Council Member Mike McMahon from Staten Island

         16  and Council Member Inez Dickens, our Majority WIP.

         17  We've been joined by our Finance Chair, Council

         18  Member David Weprin.  I'd like to call on Council

         19  Member Katz.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I just would

         21  like to ask Commissioner Tierney about the money

         22  that the Council allocates to the Landmarks

         23  Commission.  I know that Council Member Lappin has

         24  been a great advocate of that.  You were talking

         25  about the other boroughs besides Manhattan  --
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          2                 MR. TIERNEY:  Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  --  And I was

          4  encouraging you to keep the discussion going.  I

          5  think that you have tried your best to try to make

          6  what I think was an inequitable situation a little

          7  more equitable.  Can you just discuss a little bit

          8  on how that money is going to be utilized?

          9                 MR. TIERNEY:  Sure.  One of the

         10  reasons that we had such a, I believe, an enormously

         11  successful and record breaking year, if you will, in

         12  this last fiscal year and I had intended to get to

         13  this and I'm glad you asked.  I would have added it

         14  myself.  That is a result, directly, of the efforts

         15  of Chair Lappin of the Subcommittee, last year, in

         16  allocating an additional, in the budget adoption

         17  process, an additional $250,000.00 earmarked for

         18  five research personnel in our Survey Department,

         19  which we were able to hire on or about September 1,

         20  very quick turnaround, and put to work immediately

         21  in a City- wide survey of what is out there for

         22  designation down the road.

         23                 It also had the effect of freeing up

         24  some, an indirect effect, but nonetheless a very

         25  important one, of enabling us to identify and
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          2  designate more buildings during that year.  They

          3  were in a survey operation, but that wasn't, they

          4  were multi- tasking, if you will, those additional

          5  five people, and were able to help enormously to put

          6  us over the top on, in terms of the work we were

          7  able to do in designation.  And, they've laid the

          8  groundwork for future designations throughout the

          9  City.

         10                 That groundwork will be made easier

         11  and continued by an additional, not only the, the

         12  appropriation of an additional $250,000.00 to

         13  continue these five people for another year, which

         14  is the preferable way to be able to run the City

         15  agency, I found, is to be able to, to do the hires

         16  and to have, give people a certain level of

         17  predictability in terms of their employment.  I

         18  think it helps in many ways to proceed and operate,

         19  particularly the expense side of the agency, in that

         20  fashion.

         21                 So, I'm particularly happy that not

         22  only has the $250,000.00 been reappropriated, if you

         23  will, or re- or whatever the proper budgetary term,

         24  added again by Chair Lappin and this, concurred, of

         25  course, by the Council and the Mayor's side, but an
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          2  additional $50,000.00 above that.  So, which can

          3  allow us to have, which is a total of $300,000.00 in

          4  this year's budget, which will allow us the

          5  flexibility to, whatever, maybe hire an additional

          6  person, use it in some other ways to enhance further

          7  our capacity to do this incredibly important survey

          8  and designation work.

          9                 So, I am deeply appreciative.  It

         10  will allow us to continue to survey these

         11  neighborhoods in all five boroughs and to move

         12  forward with a designation, the same people who

         13  identified the 15,000 buildings in our survey last

         14  year will now be able to do designation.

         15                 Let me add one thing to that, may I?

         16  I've gone on too long.  But, in addition, and I know

         17  there were efforts and I'm very grateful for all the

         18  efforts you made and have made and continue to make

         19  on our behalf and on the agency's behalf and on

         20  behalf of preservation.  We are also going to be

         21  freeing up from the Mayor's, from the Department of,

         22  DoITT's technology budget a substantial sum to be

         23  able to do a significant, within the next 12 months,

         24  significant upgrade and integration of our databases

         25  in excess of a million dollars, probably a million
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          2  five for that purpose.  It won't be new employees in

          3  the agency, but it will be the ability to hire

          4  outside, to get expertise to be able to do that.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  So, the upshot

          6  is that the money that the Council is putting in is

          7  being used in the other boroughs also besides

          8  Manhattan  --

          9                 MR. TIERNEY:  Absolutely.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  --  To

         11  designate buildings. But, I would like to, without

         12  an answer  --

         13                 MR. TIERNEY:  Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  --  Just sort

         15  of throw out my two cents, which you and I have had

         16  the discussion of quite often, which is that the

         17  historical districts outside of Manhattan are also

         18  extremely important to many of us.  I do

         19  congratulate you on Sunnyside and I know, as we move

         20  forward, the Council will be intricately involved in

         21  that.  But, just to keep in mind that the historical

         22  districts outside of Manhattan, as well as in

         23  Manhattan, I understand that, are extremely

         24  important to many of us.

         25                 I will be running in and out, Madam
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          2  Chair, but clearly, the Commissioner has earned the

          3  respect of a lot of the colleagues, not only did

          4  Council Member Lappin carry the extra money so that

          5  he could do his job better and Council Member

          6  Garodnick and several folks in negotiating were

          7  extremely supportive to make sure that the money

          8  stayed there.  He is, I think, the perfect example

          9  of we don't always agree.  There are times when him

         10  and I have many rapid discussions about different

         11  things, but he is accessible, he is there and I do

         12  believe he does a good job and I will be voting aye.

         13                 MR. TIERNEY:  Thank you very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  Thank you Council

         15  Member Katz. I want to just mention, we've been

         16  joined by Council Member Lewis Fidler.  I wanted to

         17  just take the opportunity, I know that I have a list

         18  going, I have Council Member Dickens and then

         19  Lappin.

         20                 But, I wanted to just stay with what

         21  Council Member Katz had raised as far as research

         22  analysts haven't been hired.  Since September to the

         23  present time, with $250,000.00 allocated, your

         24  agency was probably sought out to receive money

         25  through initiatives, previous to this year, by
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          2  several Council Members, and we consolidated

          3  everything, I being one of them, joined Council

          4  Member Lappin, Dan Garodnick, Tony Avella.

          5                 So, there's a huge interest here,

          6  diverse enough to want to support the Commission and

          7  the work it does.  What significant change, as far

          8  as numbers are concerned, if you had raw data, that

          9  you can give back to us as far as what that money

         10  did for you and the City?

         11                 MR. TIERNEY:  Well, the raw data was

         12  the fifth, we were able to survey 15,000 buildings

         13  throughout the City of New York and  --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  So, I don't want

         15  to lose that.

         16                 MR. TIERNEY:  No, no and we're not

         17  going to.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  So, 15,000

         19  surveys.

         20                 MR. TIERNEY:  Correct and we have

         21  been able to, I believe, I can't give you a one to

         22  one exact connection, but that money was also

         23  instrumental and critical to the ability to

         24  designate over 1,100 buildings in the last fiscal,

         25  the fiscal year that ends in three days  --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  Throughout --

          3                 MR. TIERNEY:  --  From now.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  --  The five

          5  boroughs?

          6                 MR. TIERNEY:  Throughout?  Primarily,

          7  throughout, all throughout the five boroughs, yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  And as far as the

          9  next step for the 1,100 designated, what then

         10  happens?  Designated then to be calendared?

         11                 MR. TIERNEY:  Well, more, no, no, the

         12  designation is over for those, but out of the survey

         13  will come additional buildings  --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  I see.

         15                 MR. TIERNEY:  --  To be calendared,

         16  if they pass certain threshold tests that we have in

         17  the agency.  Ultimately, calendaring leads to public

         18  hearing and ultimately designation, in most cases.

         19  So, it's all, it really has established a pipeline.

         20  The pipeline was started last year with the 250,

         21  it's continuing now this year with the 300.

         22  Hopefully, it will not end.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  As far as the

         24  backlog that we continuously hear, what is the

         25  number right now?
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          2                 MR. TIERNEY:  I don't know whether

          3  we, it would be accurate to characterize it as a

          4  backlog.  We do have dozens, hundreds of

          5  applications every year for.  We don't have a

          6  backlog of any, of, in the, on the regulatory side,

          7  as I described, 9,200 permit applications, we

          8  process them very expeditiously. Obviously, the more

          9  complex applications require more time, but no one,

         10  to the best of my knowledge, is actually filing and

         11  waiting, sort of waiting for action that, other than

         12  action that's warranted by the work that's required.

         13    So, we've cleared up the backlog, if there was

         14  one, on the regulatory side.

         15                 On the designation side, there are,

         16  if you could describe the 15,000 buildings that are

         17  survey, I wouldn't want to call them a backlog, but

         18  it's an inventory, or it's a  --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  Right.

         20                 MR. TIERNEY:  --  That we need to go

         21  through and make evaluations.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  So, we are making

         23  progress under your leadership.  We've seen

         24  significant changes, in particular this 15,000  --

         25                 MR. TIERNEY:  Absolutely.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  --  Survey

          3  capacity  --

          4                 MR. TIERNEY:  Highly  --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  --  That you've

          6  built.

          7                 MR. TIERNEY:  --  Highly significant

          8  changes, yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  I'd like to call

         10  on Council Member Dickens and then Council Member

         11  Lappin.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Thank you

         13  Madam Chair and good morning and  --

         14                 MR. TIERNEY:  Good morning.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  --  Thank

         16  you so much. It's good seeing you  --

         17                 MR. TIERNEY:  Good seeing you.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  --  Chair

         19  Tierney.

         20                 MR. TIERNEY:  Good seeing you.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  It's

         22  wonderful working with you and I know that you have

         23  a lot of work to do in the other boroughs.  I won't

         24  call them the outer boroughs, but the other

         25  boroughs.  But, for the phenomenal work that you do
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          2  in Manhattan and particularly in my village of

          3  Harlem, most recently, the Upper West Side and for

          4  the Renaissance on Adam Clayton  --

          5                 MR. TIERNEY:  Yes  --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  --  Powell

          7  Boulevard  --

          8

          9                 MR. TIERNEY:  --  Thank you.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  --  I'm very

         11  proud of that work and recognizing that you are most

         12  interested in the preservation of historic

         13  buildings.  But, where changes need to be done, you

         14  are able to make those adjustments and I thank you

         15  so very much.

         16                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY:  Thank you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Good morning

         18  Ms. Washington  --

         19                 MS. WASHINGTON:  Good morning.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  --  I'm glad

         21  to see you this morning.  I just wanted my

         22  colleagues to know that Ms. Washington maintains a

         23  business in my district, as well as she resides in

         24  my district.

         25                 She does phenomenal work and most
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          2  recently of which Chair Lappin would be very glad to

          3  know about, that Ms. Washington was the architect

          4  for a $25 million 125- unit green building, the

          5  first in Harlem, of which we're very proud of. It's

          6  a phenomenal building.  I'd like to invite all of

          7  you to come, but particularly Chair Lappin, because

          8  she is a great proponent and advocate for green

          9  buildings.  So, I'd like you to see that particular

         10  one in Harlem, as we're very proud of it. I'm very

         11  proud of the work that you have done.

         12                 I also spoke with Ms. Washington in

         13  advance of this morning's Hearing to make sure that

         14  she would be able to do and to understand that she

         15  would have to recuse herself where there are cases

         16  where she's involved or has knowledge.  She has

         17  confirmed and committed that she would certainly be

         18  able to do that.

         19                 Right now, if I'm correct, she has

         20  nothing before, that's being done now, and that in

         21  the future, she would make it known to Conflicts, as

         22  well as to Chair Tierney, if this should ever arise

         23  and recuse herself.  So, I support this.  And, Chair

         24  Tierney, you know, I've been a proponent of and a

         25  strong advocate of diversity within Landmarks which,
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          2  at times, has been problematic.  So, I'm very glad

          3  to see that this appointment is being considered and

          4  hopefully my colleagues will agree to support this.

          5  So, thank you so very much.  It's good seeing all of

          6  you.  I just want to congratulate Dr. Tsang for

          7  being willing to be a part of the New York City

          8  Board of Health.  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  Thank you Council

         10  Member Dickens.  Council Member Lappin.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN:  Thank you

         12  Madam Chair.  I wanted to start by making clear for

         13  the record that last year, when we first obtained

         14  the City Council additional funding for the

         15  Landmarks Commission, Council Member Reyna and

         16  Council Member Avella and I were partners.  I think,

         17  ultimately, that's why we were successful, because

         18  we were able to show that there was a tri- borough

         19  team, that we're all interested in this, that it was

         20  not a Manhattan thing.  I'm very appreciative to

         21  Council Member Reyna, especially because I was the

         22  new kid on the block, for working with me on that.

         23                 I wanted to echo Council Member

         24  Dickens' concerns, just about potential conflicts

         25  that arise.  It's important to have people on the
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          2  Commission who not only fulfill the requirements

          3  from the Charter, but who actually work in the

          4  field, who understand the real issues, practical

          5  issues that come into play when you're looking at

          6  adaptive reuses, in particular, and that seems to be

          7  where you have most of your expertise and I think

          8  that's great.

          9                 It's important to preserve buildings,

         10  but also to recognize that over time those uses need

         11  to change, to reflect the areas and the individual

         12  owners of those buildings.  I think making sure that

         13  they happen in a way that's consistent with the

         14  original designation, but really allow the owners to

         15  make changes are important.  But, obviously, as a

         16  working architect, you may have projects that come

         17  before the Commission and I'm satisfied that you'll

         18  be looking to the Conflicts of Interest Board for

         19  guidance on those items.

         20                 In terms of the chair, I wanted to

         21  say, for my colleagues, that he has been open and

         22  accessible to me.  I have enjoyed working with him.

         23  I think we had, it was a little bit frustrated this

         24  year in the context of the budget process for

         25  obvious reasons that I'm not going to belabor,
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          2  particularly because I think that the money that we

          3  allocated last year has gone to such great use.  I'm

          4  very happy to hear that.

          5                 Are you, have you now completed your

          6  survey efforts?

          7                 MR. TIERNEY:  No we've not.  We're

          8  ongoing.  I don't have the list in front of me, but,

          9  no, it's not completed. It is an ongoing process.

         10  We will do more.  We will refine what we've already

         11  done and we will focus, we'll be proceeding at

         12  multiple levels, but we do have more neighborhoods.

         13  If I start naming them, I will get in trouble

         14  because I will not have included them all.  But, we

         15  did, there are several neighborhoods still in that

         16  pipeline that we will now actively  --

         17                 COUNCIL  MEMBER LAPPIN:  So, you've

         18  looked at  --

         19                 MR. TIERNEY:  --  Get into.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN:  --  Some

         21  neighborhoods in each of the five boroughs, but you

         22  have not comprehensively surveyed all five boroughs?

         23                 MR. TIERNEY:  That's correct.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN:  Okay.  So,

         25  with the money that the Council has restored and
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          2  enhanced  --

          3                 MR. TIERNEY:  Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN:  --  You will

          5  continue your efforts to survey all five boroughs?

          6                 MR. TIERNEY:  That's absolutely

          7  right.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN:  Okay and I

          9  had introduced a bill last year that would mandate

         10  that the Landmarks Commissioner establish a Survey

         11  Department, but you're using the money that the

         12  Council has put into the budget to do just that -

         13                 MR. TIERNEY:  Correct.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN:  So, I haven't

         15  pursued it legislatively, but I want to make sure

         16  that you're continuing to do that.

         17                 MR. TIERNEY:  That's exactly what

         18  we're doing.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN:  I would add,

         20  the Council has, now two years running, put this

         21  money into the budget and because of the

         22  administrative problems that you mention, I would

         23  hope that the Administration would baseline this

         24  money.  We have shown that it is needed and that it

         25  has been put to good use, in particularly because it
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          2  has been for personnel, I would hope that the

          3  Administration would not cut the money next year.

          4                 I just wanted to say to my colleagues

          5  that I think Chair Tierney has done a good job.  I

          6  have enjoyed working with him.  I'm not a member of

          7  the Rules Committee, but if I were, I would

          8  certainly vote favorably for your appointment and

          9  urge my colleagues to do the same.

         10                 MR. TIERNEY:  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  Thank you Chair

         12  Lappin and for your leadership on the Landmarks

         13  Committee.  I wanted to just state for the record

         14  that Ms. Washington has written to the Conflicts of

         15  Interest Board and has sought to proactively inform

         16  them that when there is suspicion of a conflict,

         17  that she would seek their guidance and be certain to

         18  recuse herself wherever necessary.  So, I wanted to

         19  just express that into the record.

         20                 I also wanted to just take a moment,

         21  Ms. Washington, to ask you, you know, when

         22  appointed, if appointed today, your role in the

         23  Landmarks Commission will allow the opportunity to

         24  look into the discussions that have been taking

         25  place around the Downtown Brooklyn development.
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          2  There has been grave concern that there is, in fact,

          3  underground railroad history and whether or not

          4  there's merit to continuing the surveying and

          5  research and proper designation in order to

          6  preserve.

          7                 If you can just give an opinion to

          8  this, your expertise and obviously from your

          9  statement, your national work in historical sitings

         10  is one that, you know, we can value here in the City

         11  of New York, especially in the time when

         12  construction is booming City- wide.  We don't want

         13  to destroy our pasts.  So, if you can just comment

         14  to this Committee your future role on this

         15  Commission?

         16                 MS. WASHINGTON:  Well, I mean, I am

         17  personally interested and professional interested in

         18  sites such as the one you described being

         19  recognized.  I think that they're important because

         20  they do tell part of the history of a City and part

         21  of the unknown history.  You know, I think that the

         22  technicalities of how it can be done right now would

         23  depend on what I find out once I'm on the Commission

         24  about how to make it possible.  I think that, you

         25  know, if, for whatever reason, it's not possible to
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          2  landmark it, it doesn't preclude there being a way

          3  to commemorate what happened.

          4                 For instance, one of the projects

          5  that we're working on now is the African Burial

          6  Ground Interpretive Center. You know, that, we were

          7  doing it in a new building, but the center will have

          8  a museum part that will talk about the African

          9  burial grounds.  So, while that space isn't itself

         10  historic or designated, there is a way to talk about

         11  something that happened in a space that is.

         12                 So, I guess what I'm saying is that I

         13  believe that there's still an opportunity to

         14  commemorate and that we shouldn't lose that and I

         15  would focused on making sure that we can do that.

         16  But, I'm not saying that I know how to do it as the

         17  Commission yet  --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  Correct.

         19                 MS. WASHINGTON:  --  But there may be

         20  some way if the Commission can't, to do it  --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  Right.

         22                 MS. WASHINGTON:  --  In another

         23  manner.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  As Chair of the

         25  Commission, Mr. Tierney, I want to just ensure that

                                                            38

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  you guide Ms. Washington appropriately in order to

          3  seek any possibilities of commemorating this site

          4  one way or another  --

          5                 MR. TIERNEY:  Of course.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  --  And that all

          7  the research analysts we need to invest in this

          8  site, that it's appropriately given the attention

          9  because we don't want to just segway into

         10  prodevelopment and forget what we should be doing

         11  and your duties as a Commission to preserve City

         12  historical sites.

         13                 MR. TIERNEY:  Well taken.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  Thank you.

         15                 MR. TIERNEY:  I understand, thank

         16  you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  I'd like to call

         18  upon Council Member Gentile.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Thank you

         20  Madam Chair. Good morning and thank you for being

         21  here.  My questions are to Mr. Tierney.  First, I

         22  want to say, you know, I understand that the

         23  resources are needed for the volume of requests that

         24  the Commission gets every year.  That's why I

         25  supported Council Member Lappin's initiatives for
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          2  the restoration of the $250,000.00 and the addition

          3  of $50,000.00 to add to the resources of Landmarks

          4  Preservation Commission.

          5                 But, even with the current resources

          6  that you have, I must tell you, Chairman Tierney,

          7  that I am deeply, deeply, disappointed in the

          8  conduct and behavior of, on a professional level, of

          9  the Commission in this past year in regard to

         10  particularly a request that has come from the Bay

         11  Ridge community in Brooklyn.

         12                 My disappointment on a professional

         13  level goes to, I think you said it best in your pre-

         14  Hearing questions, your answers to the pre- Hearing

         15  questions, where you said one of the greatest

         16  obstacles is to, and I'll quote, you said the need

         17  to evaluate and act decisively in this time of great

         18  economic growth.  Neighborhoods often face threats

         19  to their historic character and it is our job to be

         20  able to evaluate and decide which ones are deserving

         21  of protection in a timely manner.

         22                 Well, I have to tell you, Chairman

         23  Tierney, that in regard to the request for the Bay

         24  Ridge United Methodist Church to be considered for

         25  calendaring for landmark consideration.  A letter
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          2  was sent to you.  I sent you a letter back in April

          3  of 2006, April of 2006, asking, and that was

          4  actually a second letter that was sent in April.

          5  So, there was a previous letter to this one.  That

          6  letter detailed the request of the Bay Ridge

          7  community and my request to the calendaring of this

          8  church for landmark consideration.

          9                 I have to be honest here, there was

         10  no response from you, from anyone from the

         11  Commission.  Calls to your office went unreturned

         12  and we had no official communication whatsoever for

         13  14 months.  Then, on June 11th of this month, a week

         14  and a half before this Hearing in your

         15  reappointment, I received a letter addressed to me,

         16  indicating that the Commission would not recommend

         17  for the consideration or calendaring of the Bay

         18  Ridge United Methodist Church.

         19                 It seems to me that given the nature

         20  of this historic church and a building that is more

         21  than a century old, to wait 14 months for a reply

         22  from the Landmarks, from you or from anyone from the

         23  Landmarks Preservation Commission is not only

         24  unacceptable but inexcusable.  It is an affront to

         25  me.  It's an affront to this Council.
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          2                 For the benefit of those here, what I

          3  asked you to do was to look at the Bay Ridge United

          4  Methodist Church and just for consideration of

          5  putting it on the calendar, so the people in my

          6  community could make the case for its landmarking.

          7                 It was designed in 1899.  The

          8  structure has a four- faced clock tower, probably

          9  one of the few four- faced clock towers that remain

         10  in the City of New York.  It is a composite of

         11  classic Gothic and Romanesque elements.  It has

         12  vaulted ceilings, magnificent stained glass windows,

         13  richly detailed oak balconies. In 1901, this

         14  significance of this church to this community, two

         15  years after the church was built, the remains of 210

         16  members of this church were interred upon the

         17  grounds of the church in memory of their efforts to

         18  erect this house of worship.

         19                 This really has become a veritable

         20  beacon of dignity and bucolic beauty, right on

         21  Fourth Avenue in Bay Ridge. Because we have not been

         22  able to get any consideration for calendaring, and

         23  I'm not saying landmarking, just calendaring, to

         24  give us the opportunity to make our case to the

         25  Landmarks Commission, this church now has negotiated
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          2  a contract for sale with developers.  We are in the

          3  position now of having to try and either convince

          4  developers to save part of this historic church or

          5  watch the wrecking ball in the next few months

          6  attack and destroy this beautiful piece of property

          7  on Fourth Avenue in Bay Ridge.

          8                 You know, it says here that, the New

          9  York Times called it the little church that

         10  couldn't.  The little church that couldn't.  Madam

         11  Chair, I think, in this case, this is the little

         12  church that couldn't get calendared for

         13  consideration in landmarking.  I guess what I'm

         14  telling you is water under the bridge at this point,

         15  but I guess my concern now is the church still

         16  stands.  The church hasn't been sold.  Would you, at

         17  this point, at least make a verbal commitment to the

         18  people of Bay Ridge that you will at least calendar

         19  this, so that we can make a case before the

         20  Commission for landmarking of this property?

         21                 MR. TIERNEY:  I won't make a

         22  commitment at this table about calendaring, because

         23  calendaring is the taking of legal jurisdiction over

         24  a matter before the Commission.  That is to say a

         25  building or let's put it aside from this, any
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          2  building that we decide to bring under our

          3  jurisdiction officially is put on the calendar.

          4                 What happens when it's put on the

          5  calendar is that it's frozen.  Nothing can happen to

          6  it.  Can't be, not a window can be changed without,

          7  without the approval of the Commission. It,

          8  effectively, is in legal status of, as if it were

          9  designated.

         10                 Once it's calendared, it leads to,

         11  the only two ways to get something removed from the

         12  calendar.  There would have to be, and both require

         13  a public hearing.  There would have to be a public

         14  hearing that you've talked about.  Then, there would

         15  have to be a vote to either designate it or to vote

         16  no after all these things have taken place.

         17                 It was our judgment, based on the

         18  judgment of my staff and the Research Department and

         19  all the others, based on all the factors that go

         20  into this, and I, my recollection is that the church

         21  itself was strenuously opposed to designation.  I

         22  don't know whether that's your understanding  --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  No surprise,

         24  no surprise.

         25                 MR. TIERNEY:  --  But that, these are

                                                            44

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  all factors when we go in and we talk about

          3  designation of buildings, let's say a private

          4  residence, it's a factor.  I'm not saying it's

          5  determinative or dispositive and the law doesn't

          6  require owner approval.  But, it's a factor in our,

          7  in my evaluation anyway, about whether an owner

          8  wishes to consent or not object to designation or

          9  going through this process.

         10                 It seems to me also in a religious or

         11  non- profit institution, it should be and is a

         12  factor as well.  So, putting all those factors

         13  combined and getting the, getting the evaluation

         14  from my staff, we reached the conclusion that I told

         15  you in that letter.  I cannot say here today that I

         16  would change that and calendar this building.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Well, for

         18  the record, the letter is actually from Marybeth

         19  Betts, not from you  --

         20                 MR. TIERNEY:  Who is the Director of

         21  Research and --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Yes, no  --

         23                 MR. TIERNEY:  --  Is a scholar and an

         24    --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  --  I
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          2  understand  --

          3                 MR. TIERNEY:  --  Expert in the  --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  I

          5  understand.

          6                 MR. TIERNEY:  --  This field.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  But, I did

          8  address the letter to you in April of  '06.  It

          9  seems to me, the letter that I addressed to you was

         10  in April of  '06  --

         11                 MR. TIERNEY:  And I'm sorry that, to

         12  the extent that this took longer  --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  14 months.

         14                 MR. TIERNEY:  --  Than it should

         15  have, I  --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  14 months

         17  for a reply.

         18                 MR. TIERNEY:  --  I take the

         19  responsibility for that and we try to be as timely

         20  as possible.  In this case, if we weren't, that's,

         21  that's my, my fault.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  It came at a

         23  critical time for this church.  We call it the green

         24  church because  --

         25                 MR. TIERNEY:  Yeah.

                                                            46

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  --  Of the,

          3  the green hued Pennsylvania quarry serpentine stone

          4  that was put on this church and its turned green

          5  over the years.  It is in the center of Fourth

          6  Avenue where there are tall buildings.  This is one

          7  area that's open space, green rolling hills and a

          8  beautiful historic church.

          9                 It seems to me that if you're saying

         10  that a handful of parishioners who are left at that

         11  church, deciding whether or not it should be

         12  calendared, whether or not they agree for it to be

         13  calendared, as opposed to a community who considers

         14  it a part of a historic nature of the community,

         15  then I disagree. I think that the community concerns

         16  should be weighed as much, if not more.

         17                 MR. TIERNEY:  I'm saying that, but

         18  I'm saying it's a factor.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  So, if

         20  you're not willing, here, to at least make a

         21  commitment to the people of Bay Ridge, Madam Chair,

         22  I can't see any way that I could support this

         23  renomination and reappointment.  It is, we're at the

         24  point now where the wrecking ball is probably a

         25  couple of blocks away. It's a shame that this church
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          2  could not even make a case.  The people of the

          3  community could not even make a case to this

          4  Commission, so that at least we'd have a yes or a no

          5  after a presentation was made.  We can't even make

          6  the presentation.  So, I cannot support this

          7  reappointment.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  Thank you Council

          9  Member Gentile.  Mr. Tierney, as far as, you know,

         10  the 14- month delay in response  --

         11                 MR. TIERNEY:  Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  --  Amongst the

         13  15,000 surveys that you had conducted, was the

         14  United Bay Ridge Methodist Church part of that

         15  survey?

         16                 MR. TIERNEY:  I don't believe it was

         17  part of the survey.  We were well aware of the

         18  church, apart from the surveys.  It doesn't mean for

         19  14 months nothing was being done and there was no

         20  work being, it was ongoing  --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  Right.

         22                 MR. TIERNEY:  --  Discussion and

         23  review and it's, it was, no, it's not part of the

         24  15,000.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  And is there any
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          2  reason why it wouldn't be part of the survey,

          3  understanding that there is a factor here that the

          4  diocese does not  --

          5                 MR. TIERNEY:  Yeah.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  --  Approve  --

          7                 MR. TIERNEY:  Sure.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  --  And

          9  strenuously opposes any type of landmarking because

         10  they are interested in selling the property?  So,

         11  right now, at the very least, the capacity as far as

         12  the surveying piece, you know, I understand that

         13  there is the process  --

         14                 MR. TIERNEY:  Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  --  And part of

         16  that process is this first initial step.

         17                 MR. TIERNEY:  Correct.  The things we

         18  were discussing would not preclude this church or

         19  any other building that had these kinds of factors

         20  involved from appearing on a survey.  In fact, it's

         21  likely ultimately it would.  But, it was not on this

         22  particular survey, which is not to say we weren't

         23  actively considering it and reviewing it.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  I'm not trying to

         25  take away from what Council Member Gentile has
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          2  already commented to you or has already expressed

          3  his dissatisfaction with the actions that were taken

          4  here, or lack of action, but I want to be certain

          5  that we're sensitive to the timeliness of how these

          6  particular sites are chosen and how a lack of

          7  response, in fact, just speeds up a negative effect.

          8    So, I personally had a conversation with you in my

          9  own district  --

         10                 MR. TIERNEY:  Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  --  As to a site

         12  that took far too long to even survey and then a

         13  response and then  --

         14                 MR. TIERNEY:  Correct.  No, we try

         15  to, I, it's a well taken point.  We try to be, we

         16  have no excuse, but hundreds of applications,

         17  hundreds of ongoing research, things going on and

         18  some of them take longer than others because of

         19  various factors and complexities.  But, we're ever

         20  mindful of that, trying to cut down the time.

         21                 It's often the case that what is

         22  desired is not necessarily just an answer, but an

         23  answer, of course, is good to have.  But, if an

         24  answer, either a yes answer as opposed to a no

         25  answer, sometimes it's, a no answer can be given
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          2  quickly.  But I've always been of the mind to try to

          3  continue to look for other ways to not have a no

          4  answer or have something that maybe that's a, that's

          5  my own sort of failing.  Often times, it's better to

          6  say, okay, no, period, right up front.  But, I try

          7  to work on it and work with people who are

          8  interested in it and try to find a way to  --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  And knowing that

         10  you are  --

         11                 MR. TIERNEY:  --  Not have a no

         12  answer.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  --  That type of

         14  reasonable chairman, you know, the surveying piece

         15   --

         16                 MR. TIERNEY:  Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  --  Is where that

         18  area of you trying to do your best part in doing

         19  something is where I would like to request that you

         20  use that power  --

         21                 MR. TIERNEY:  Sure.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  --  Because these

         23  are not just taking into consideration what the

         24  property owner is requesting of the Commission, but

         25  also the community interest  --
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          2                 MR. TIERNEY:  Understand.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  --  Who is

          4  affected by what goes on on that particular site  --

          5                 MR. TIERNEY:  Absolutely.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  --  Or any other

          7  site that is surrounded by a community.

          8                 MR. TIERNEY:  Sure.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  Are there any

         10  further questions?  I know that we have been joined

         11  by Council Member Erik Dilan.  Congratulations on

         12  the Housing and Buildings Committee vote for the new

         13  buildings code, and Council Member Leroy Comrie, who

         14  was with us and probably stepped out.

         15                 I wanted to just apologize to Dr.

         16  Tsang, because usually when you're mixed in with the

         17  Landmarks Commission, everything else becomes

         18  obscured.  But, you have not been forgotten.  We

         19  want to just consider now the opportunity to, oh,

         20  Council Member Mendez.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  Thank you.  I

         22  had wanted to speak on behalf of Commissioner

         23  Tierney and I sympathize with my colleague, Council

         24  Member Gentile.  I remember seeing this on TV and

         25  speaking to him about it because I have a similar
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          2  situation in my district with Saint Bridges Church.

          3  But, unlike Council Member Gentile, my experience

          4  was different.  I did get responses, not the

          5  responses I wanted to hear, but I did get answers as

          6  to why Saint Bridges wasn't considered for the

          7  request for calendaring.

          8                 Throughout your tenure, and I've

          9  dealt with the Commission prior to being in the City

         10  Council, I feel that you've dealt with everything

         11  even- handedly.  Like I said, even though I don't

         12  agree with all your positions and I would like to

         13  hope that the Commission can reconsider the church

         14  in Gentile's district, as well as Saint Bridges, I

         15  think, overall, during the last year and a half that

         16  I've been on this Council, seeing all the matters

         17  that have come before us and diversity and all the

         18  districts. When I first came here, I was told

         19  Landmarks was only about Manhattan and I've

         20  certainly seen many things from Brooklyn and Queens

         21  and Staten Island come before our Landmarks

         22  Subcommittee and I'm proud, though I cannot vote for

         23  you because I'm not a voting member of this

         24  Committee, proud to support your renomination.

         25                 MR. TIERNEY:  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  Council Member

          3  Katz.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I apologize to

          5  my colleagues, though it's not normally what I do,

          6  but I would like to ask unanimous consent or consent

          7  to the Chair to vote aye on all.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  And Council

          9  Member McMahon.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:  Thank you

         11  Madam Chairwoman, I also request unanimous consent

         12  from my colleagues to vote aye on all.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  You may do so.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:  The City of

         15  New York is fortunate to have you all working for

         16  them.  Keep up the good work.  Good luck on your new

         17  work.  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  I didn't want to

         19  end with a vote because Council Member Comrie just

         20  stepped back into the room and he had a comment or

         21  question to ask.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Thank you

         23  Madam Chair.  I don't have a question.  I just have

         24  a comment.  I'm just going to echo my support for

         25  Commissioner Tierney and his staff.  Even though we
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          2  don't agree on every issue and we have fights on

          3  many issue, at least we can discuss them and it's

          4  been an open and honest discussion.

          5                 You've been more than amenable to the

          6  questions that I've presented.  You've been more

          7  than willing to take the suggestions from the other

          8  Council Members as well.  I think you definitely

          9  have improved the office under your tenure and I'm

         10  proud of the ability to work with you on things,

         11  even though I don't agree on everything that you're

         12  doing.

         13                 So, but at least as, you know,

         14  typical New Yorkers, we like to argue and we argue

         15  productively and we don't argue negatively.  I think

         16  that in all, that bestows a positive for the City

         17  when we can have a real discourse on issues and come

         18  to an agreement at the end of the day and at least

         19  all parties understand how we got there, as opposed

         20  to it being done in some amorphous or cloud of dust

         21  and people are then unhappy about the process.

         22                 Your process has been clear, even

         23  though it's contentious, it has been properly done,

         24  even though we have different sides and different

         25  opinions.  I respect you and your staff.  Even
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          2  though I may be arguing with you next week at a

          3  different meeting, I appreciate your outreach.

          4  You've never not gotten back to us and you've never

          5  been anything but completely honest and I strongly

          6  recommend your reappointment.

          7                 Just to the other two candidates, I

          8  want to say welcome aboard.  You know, Landmarks is,

          9  as a former chair, a very unique and challenging

         10  opportunity and I want to just thank you for your

         11  desire to serve the City.  Thank you very much.

         12  Thank you Madam Chair.

         13                 MR. TIERNEY:  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  Thank you Council

         15  Member Comrie.  Council Member Dilan.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  Madam Chair,

         17  I'd like to request unanimous consent to vote on all

         18  the candidates on today's agenda?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  You may so.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  I vote aye.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  I just wanted to

         22  alert the rest of this Committee that there are two

         23  testimonies from the public that we would like to

         24  give the opportunity, so I will not call for a vote

         25  until I hear from those two particular individuals.
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          2                 I would like to say thank you to the

          3  three appointees for their generous time and service

          4  to the City of New York, your willingness to be able

          5  to be able to be a part of all the decision- making,

          6  to be at the table.  I know that you have your own

          7  lives and duties to perform.

          8                 Dr. Tsang, welcome aboard to the

          9  Board of Health. I wanted to raise issues as far as,

         10  you know, the growing number of HIV cases amongst

         11  the senior population.  I'm sure you're more aware

         12  of that than we are, but to pay close attention to

         13  that particular population, because we're seeing a

         14  new generation of cases which was one that perhaps

         15  none of us were on alert for.  I thank you, in

         16  advance, for the service that you're going to

         17  provide to the Board of Health.

         18                 Ms. Washington, your diversity onto

         19  the Landmarks Commission is one that we've been

         20  waiting for.  We hope that you can recommend other

         21  colleagues from your other roles in organizations to

         22  the Arts Commission, which is another Commission

         23  that we're trying to diversify.  It's imperative,

         24  not just race and color, but I'm talking about

         25  diversity as far as geographic terms, you know,
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          2  Brooklyn, Queens, Staten Island and the Bronx.

          3                 Mr. Tierney, thank you very much for

          4  your relentless work on the Landmarks Commission and

          5  we hope to see you continue.  Thank you.

          6                 MR. TIERNEY:  Thank you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  I'd like to call

          8  upon Simeon Bankoff and Mr. William E. Davis,

          9  Junior.  I ask that the appointees remain here, if

         10  you can.  If you cannot, you're certainly are

         11  excused.  I understand you have your other jobs to

         12  go to.  Council Member Dickens.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Thank you.

         14  Thank you so much Madam Chair and I apologize, but

         15  I'm asking for unanimous consent to vote on all the

         16  appointments.  I strongly support them.  I

         17  sympathize with my colleague and Vinny Gentile and I

         18  understand the problem that you've had.  I'm going

         19  to ask that Chair Tierney work with our colleague

         20  closely, but it is very important that we leave now,

         21  so I ask permission please? Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  Absolutely.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Aye on all.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  Thank you.

         25  Council Member Rivera.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA:  Thank you

          3  very much Madam Chair.  I also want to support the

          4  nominations and vote aye on all.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  Thank you and

          6  Council Member Fidler.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  We all have

          8  the same meeting to go to.  I apologize to the

          9  witnesses, I had asked for the opportunity to vote.

         10  But, I do want to make a statement.

         11                 I am very, very troubled by what

         12  Councilman Gentile had to say.  If not for the

         13  sterling reputation that Mr. Tierney has, and my

         14  personal knowledge of it, I would be voting no.

         15                 I'm going to vote yes on all three.

         16  But, Mr. Tierney, I think it is absolutely

         17  unacceptable for a community to be petitioning an

         18  agency for 14 months without a response and in this

         19  particular case, at a critical, critical juncture.

         20  The issue isn't whether or not they're right, the

         21  issue is whether or not they had the opportunity to

         22  convince you that they were right.

         23                 I know that I have a church that is

         24  in a very similar situation coming down the pike in

         25  Canarsie.  The fact that you were responsive in
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          2  Councilwoman's Mendez' district, but not in

          3  Councilman Gentile's district, maybe even troubles

          4  me more, because we've always had this

          5  Manhattancentric view of the Landmarks Preservation

          6  Commission.

          7                 So, I would urge that, you know,

          8  before the wrecking ball hits this church, that the

          9  Commission meet with Councilman Gentile and his

         10  community and discuss this issue and see whether or

         11  not there is merit to their case.  With that, I vote

         12  aye.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  Thank you Council

         14  Member Fidler.  I'd like to now ask for  --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I've got to

         16  go to the same meeting.  I'm sorry Madam Chair.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  I apologize to

         18  our two  --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I'm sorry,

         20  I'd like unanimous  --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  --  Members of

         22  the public.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  --  I wanted

         24  to stay, but --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  Council Member

                                                            60

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  Comrie.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I'd like

          4  unanimous consent to vote on all items.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I'd like to

          7  vote aye. Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  Thank you.

          9  Simeon Bankoff.

         10                 MR. BANKOFF:  Good morning Council

         11  Members.  Thank you for allowing me to be part of

         12  this public process.  When HDC last submitted

         13  testimony before this Committee on Mr. Tierney's

         14  reappointment in January in 2006, we voiced our

         15  concerns about the lack of resources for the agency,

         16  which had led to a diminishment of designation

         17  actions to profound low.

         18                 In the ensuing 18 months under Mr.

         19  Tierney's leadership and with the active partnership

         20  of City Council, the LPC has greatly strengthened

         21  its staff numbers and has just achieved the highest

         22  number of landmark designations since 1990, while

         23  still processing a record number of permit

         24  applications. This a remarkable accomplishment of

         25  which Mr. Tierney should be justly proud.  I also
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          2  would like to greatly thank the Council for its

          3  leadership in giving them the resources.

          4                 That all these designations are

          5  almost entirely outside of Manhattan also points to

          6  the agency's growing responsiveness to the

          7  preservation community's calls for attention to

          8  underserved areas.  Indeed, the additional research

          9  and survey staff brought on in the past year has

         10  enabled LPC to react speedily, when necessary, in

         11  order to preserve historic structures from imminent

         12  destruction, such as the case at 70 Lefferts Place,

         13  when the agency intervened literally days before a

         14  demolition permit was issued.

         15                 It would be incorrect to say that

         16  there have not been instances in the last year and a

         17  half, where HDC has objected to LPC's actions and

         18  decisions.  That's part of the natural tension

         19  between civic groups and government.  Rather than

         20  revisit past arguments, the Historic Districts

         21  Council would like to take this opportunity to

         22  mention a few ideas and hopes we have for the

         23  future.  Hopes that we wish Mr. Tierney, as the

         24  preservation community's strongest advocate to Mayor

         25  Bloomberg, can help us accomplish.
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          2                 First, it's been clearly shown that

          3  the Council's generous allocation to the LPC has

          4  greatly aided the agency's work.  As part of his

          5  legacy, we hope that Mayor Bloomberg increases the

          6  baseline LPC budget to, at the very least, ensure

          7  that the Survey Department remains at its current

          8  level and that the Preservation Department is

          9  adequately staffed to deal with the inevitable

         10  increased regulatory work.  This is of pivotal

         11  importance.  Under Mr. Tierney's guidance, the

         12  agency has emerged from a tenure slump in resources

         13  and no better legacy could be left than the best

         14  possible assurances that barring unforeseen fiscal

         15  circumstance, this will not happen again.

         16                 In August 2001, then candidate

         17  Michael Bloomberg said, you really have to give the

         18  Landmarks Commission some money and it's not in

         19  grand scheme of things anything that's going to bust

         20  the budget.  But, those are the kinds of things

         21  infrastructure, long- term things, planning things,

         22  where you really want to spend some money.

         23  Landmarks is like your top management and

         24  organization, that's where you really want to spend

         25  your money.  This observation has been shown to be
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          2  true by the increased activities of the agency when

          3  it was given the resources.  We urge Mr. Tierney to

          4  ensure that the agency continues to get those

          5  resources through an increase to the baseline

          6  budget.

          7                 Second, HDC continues to be concerned

          8  about the transparency of LPC actions.  This has

          9  been a perennial concern in both regulatory and

         10  designation activities.  Councilman Gentile just

         11  mentioned his own concerns about the time it got

         12  back, it, to get back.  While efforts have been made

         13  to ensure public participation in the landmarks

         14  process, they could use improvement.

         15                 We understand there are plans to post

         16  more information on the LPC website and we applaud

         17  them.  We also greatly appreciate the increased

         18  content on the site.  However, HDC would request

         19  that the Landmarks Commission consider making public

         20  its deliberations on potential designation items so

         21  the public can be more aware of this most important

         22  agency activity. Public presentations of agency-

         23  sponsored surveys would not seem so much to request.

         24                 Similarly, HDC has concern about

         25  certain regulatory items which appear for public
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          2  review once and then return greatly modified in a

          3  public meeting.  Although the agency has done its

          4  best to allow continued public participation in such

          5  cases, a clearer process for both applicants and the

          6  public could be promulgated.

          7                 Finally, everyone concerned with

          8  preservation agrees that we need both added

          9  protections for potential landmark buildings and

         10  incentives to encourage rehabilitative and

         11  restorative work.  There are a number of ideas that

         12  have been suggested on both these issues, a

         13  demolition delay legislation, tax assessment freezes

         14  and tax credits, to mention just a few. HDC would

         15  like to take this opportunity to request both the

         16  Landmarks Commission and City Council to pledge to

         17  work together and with the public on these

         18  initiatives.  Working together in partnership, we

         19  are certain to be able to solve our biggest

         20  preservation concerns and make profound headway on

         21  the others.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  Thank you Simeon.

         23    Can you just tell me, are you in favor or in

         24  opposition?  You did not mark off.

         25                 MR. BANKOFF:  Yeah.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  Yeah?  Would

          3  constitute in favor of?

          4                 MR. BANKOFF:  I would, I prefer to

          5  take this opportunity, you can take from my

          6  statement that we are very pleased with his actions

          7  thus far.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  Okay, duly noted.

          9    Mr. Davis. Welcome.

         10                 MR. DAVIS:  Thank you.  Hello?  Yeah.

         11    I think it's still morning.  Okay.  Madam Chair,

         12  my name is William Davis.  I'm a former member of

         13  the Landmarks Preservation Commission.  I'm here on

         14  behalf of Gene Norman, who was a former chair and he

         15  has an endorsement for candidate Roberta Washington,

         16  in which he couldn't be here, so I agreed to read

         17  his short statement.  Okay.

         18                 Good morning Council Members.  My

         19  name is Gene A. Norman and this statement is offered

         20  in support of Roberta Washington, architect, who is

         21  a candidate for the position of commissioner on the

         22  New York City Landmarks Preservation Commission.

         23                 From 1983 to  '91, I had the honor of

         24  serving on the Landmarks Preservation Commission

         25  first as chair for the six of those years and then
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          2  as a representative of the Bronx for two years.

          3  This experience afforded me a fairly unique

          4  understanding of the skill sets, knowledge and

          5  temperament needed to serve as a commissioner.  I

          6  believe Ms. Washington possess those traits and will

          7  surely be an asset on the Commission.

          8                 As a practicing architect, Roberta

          9  Washington has successfully designed projects that

         10  included preservation principles and she also

         11  understands how the goals of the preservation, how

         12  the goals of preservation can be applied to enhance

         13  proposed changes to individual landmarks and

         14  historic districts.

         15                 As an architect, she also understands

         16  the landmarks law and knows much about the

         17  Commission's past decisions and designations.

         18  Roberta's practice has included projects built in

         19  Harlem and other minority areas that give her

         20  special insights into the needs of communities and

         21  historic resources that are often overlooked in

         22  boroughs outside of Manhattan and its downtown core.

         23                 I speak with confidence about Ms.

         24  Washington's abilities because I hired her in the

         25  1990's to design a large multi- use development
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          2  projected to cost in excess of $150 million.  While

          3  the project was not built through no fault of the

          4  architect, her work was excellent and I learned of

          5  her skills and work ethic first- hand.

          6                 The Landmarks Commission will be the

          7  beneficiary of the wealth of architectural skill and

          8  knowledge Ms. Washington will apply while serving as

          9  a commissioner.  I heartily support and endorse her

         10  appointment because I know her performance will

         11  always be 100 percent.  My only regret is that I was

         12  not able to read this short statement in person due

         13  to a scheduling problem, but have asked William

         14  Davis, a former commissioner and architect to

         15  present it to you.

         16                 In addition to that statement, I,

         17  too, would also like to endorse Ms. Washington's

         18  candidacy for the Commission as well.  I served with

         19  her on a series of boards, including the State Board

         20  of Architects, where she was also a chair.  I also

         21  served with her as a panelist on the New York

         22  Council for the Arts Grants Commission, National

         23  Organization for Minority Architects and the New

         24  York Coalition of Black Architects.

         25                 I think among the many skills and
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          2  positive attributes that Ms. Washington has that I

          3  think will enhance the Commission, is a strong

          4  preservation ethic and her abilities to find balance

          5  between that ethic and the real life circumstances

          6  that the Commission must address through the

          7  applications that affect both individual landmarks

          8  and districts.  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  Thank you so much

         10  for your comments.  We will proceed with a vote from

         11  this Committee. Billy.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member Reyna.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  I vote aye.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Jackson.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Aye.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Weprin.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  May I be

         18  temporarily excused to explain my vote?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  You may do so.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Yes, I plan

         21  on voting aye on all the nominees, but I just want

         22  to state that I think Chair Tierney has been doing

         23  an excellent job and as was reiterated by a number

         24  of my colleagues, he's always been accessible to all

         25  boroughs.  I really applaud his public service
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          2  because I know he's had an extensive experience in

          3  the public sector for many years, as well as the

          4  private sector.  I look forward to working with him

          5  in his public position as chair for a number of

          6  years to come.  I vote aye on all.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Gentile.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  If I may be

          9  excused to explain please, for just a second or two?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  Absolutely.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Thank you.

         12  It is fine to not always agree.  It is fine to be

         13  able to argue and come up with different points of

         14  view and different outcomes and that's fine.  My

         15  concern here with Chairman Tierney is the ability to

         16  be in that arena, so that we can have that debate

         17  and we can have that type of discourse.

         18                 In regard to his accessibility, he

         19  has not been accessible to the people of Bay Ridge

         20  Brooklyn, the people that I represent.  He has, as I

         21  said, taken 14 months, 14 months to respond to a

         22  letter from a New York City Council Member, 14

         23  months.  It was a, just a curt conclusory statement

         24  that the Commission would not be considering the Bay

         25  Ridge United Methodist Church, otherwise known as
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          2  the green church, for consideration, without

          3  explanation.

          4                 I think this type of inaccessibility

          5  and this type of professional behavior by the

          6  Landmarks Commission and particularly the Chairman,

          7  and I know he's got a series of successes and I

          8  congratulate him for that.  But, in this case, he

          9  has not acted well.  He's been affront to me and I

         10  think it's an affront to this Council that for 14

         11  months not a letter or phone calls to me.  There

         12  have been phone calls since that letter that have

         13  not been returned.

         14                 So, I think that the people of Bay

         15  Ridge Brooklyn deserve better.  I think the people

         16  of Bay Ridge Brooklyn have a case to make and if the

         17  Chairman would like to follow- up on Councilman

         18  Fidler's suggestion, I'm ready, willing and able to

         19  do so, tomorrow, even, or next week, because, the

         20  wrecking ball is within eyesight.  The contract is

         21  about signed and we're about to have a new owner,

         22  who is a developer and the developer is not going to

         23  keep it as a church.

         24                 So, given all that and given the fact

         25  that Chairman Tierney has not acted in good faith
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          2  toward me or toward the people of Bay Ridge, I vote

          3  no on his nomination and yes on the other two.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Garodnick.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Madam

          6  Chair, just a moment to explain my vote?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  Absolutely.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Thank you.

          9    I don't usually do that, but since I didn't take

         10  the opportunity during the main session, I just

         11  wanted to say that I'm going to support all three of

         12  the nominees.  Because Commissioner Tierney is the

         13  one who I have specifically worked with directly, I

         14  really just wanted to say that I have had a

         15  different experience.  I found him to be responsive

         16  and professional and I do appreciate the time he

         17  spends in working with me.  I'm very pleased to

         18  support him today.  I vote aye on all.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Speaker Quinn.

         20                 SPEAKER QUINN:  Thank you.  I too

         21  hate to disagree with Vinny Gentile since we just

         22  had such a fabulous agreement, but I'm going to,

         23  what the hell.

         24                 The particular matter, I know that

         25  Ramone Martinez in my office is aware of it and will
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          2  certainly, obviously, follow- up as it relates to

          3  correspondence follow- up and things of that nature.

          4                 That said, I want to say as both the

          5  local Council Member in whose district Chairperson

          6  Tierney lives, somebody who has had a lot of

          7  experience with Chairperson Tierney as it relates to

          8  landmark issues in my district, both since I've

          9  become Speaker and prior to being Speaker.  He's

         10  somebody who I think is an example of a great public

         11  official and a great public servant.

         12                 You know, one of the ways that I

         13  judge people nowadays is, do you treat me the same

         14  way now as you treated me before I was Speaker.  So,

         15  if you were nice to me and called me back and were

         16  helpful before I was Speaker and you're the same

         17  now, you're a pretty good person.  If you're nice to

         18  me now, then you're just a tokus kisser, if you want

         19  my opinion, which, you know, whatever.  So, Bob

         20  Tierney.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  By the way,

         22  Madam Speaker, did I say that you look marvelous?

         23                 SPEAKER QUINN:  Bob Tierney and I'm

         24  sorry to hear that it hasn't been everyone's

         25  experience, in all sincerity, but Bob Tierney called
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          2  me back as quickly when I was a Council Member as he

          3  does now.  Took the requests I sent him as seriously

          4  when I was a Council Member as he does now.  That

          5  doesn't mean the answer is always yes now, nor the

          6  answer was always yes then. But, it does mean that I

          7  feel he gives the issues that are brought to him, in

          8  my personal experience, a high level of attention.

          9                 I do know there's a real challenge in

         10  this City and a history of boroughs outside of

         11  Manhattan, in particular the lower part of

         12  Manhattan, not getting the attention they deserve.

         13  The level of landmarking that's gone on in parts of

         14  Manhattan, north of 96th Street and other boroughs

         15  isn't what we think it should be yet.  I think that

         16  if you ask Chairperson Tierney, he would say the

         17  same thing, but it is much better than it has been

         18  under any other chair's leadership.

         19                 There's still work to do, but we're

         20  actually in place now where we are making progress,

         21  which was not the thing I think you could

         22  necessarily say under other chairs of the Landmarks

         23  Preservation Commission.  So, I am very happy today

         24  to vote yes on his reappointment and the other

         25  individuals that we are appointing today.  So, thank
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          2  you Madam Chair.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member Oddo.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  I vote yes.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK:  By a vote of 13 in

          6  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

          7  abstentions, all items have been adopted with the

          8  exception of M641, which is adopted by a vote of 12

          9  in the affirmative, one in the negative and zero

         10  abstentions.  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  I'd like to thank

         12  the appointees and congratulate them.  I'd like to

         13  thank Barbara, Chuck and Crystal for their

         14  participation in the investigations Unit and Reggie.

         15    Thank you, Billy, for your role call and this

         16  meeting is adjourned.

         17                 (Hearing concluded at 12:06 p.m.)
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